
 

WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:15 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:15 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MEETING AGENDA 

SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING 
 
 

Michael W. Hutson, Chair, and Mark Maxwell, Vice Chair 
Donald Edmunds, Philip Sanzica, Robert Schultz, Thomas Strat 

John J. Tagle, Lon M. Ullmann and Mark J. Vleck 
   
August 24, 2010 7:30 P.M. Council Board Room 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  August 10, 2010 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

REVIEW (File Number SU 382) – Proposed The Barkshire, North of Maple, West of 
Crooks (1501 Temple City Drive), Section 29, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District 

 
STUDY ITEMS 

 
9. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236) – Discussion with 

Representatives from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 

contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working 
days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us�


PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 10, 2010 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on August 10, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark J. Vleck 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Wanda Norman, Planning Department Intern 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-08-054 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda, as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-08-055 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the July 13, 2010 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 10, 2010 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 862 A) – Proposed Weston 
Downs, Southeast Corner of Wattles and Finch Road, Section 21, Currently Zoned 
R-1T (One Family Attached Residential) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the preliminary site plan application.  He 
addressed the required setbacks with respect to the proposed change in site layout.  
Mr. Branigan indicated no action is required at tonight’s meeting because the 
petitioner must apply for and potentially receive a variance from the Board of Zoning 
Appeals. 
 
The petitioner, Joe Maniaci of Mondrian Properties, 50215 Schoenherr, Shelby 
Township, was present.  Mr. Maniaci said the intent of the proposed change in site 
layout is to better market the remaining units.  He said the proposal is a viable 
option within the Master Deed and site alterations are allowed with the approval of 
the City.  Mr. Maniaci said the density would remain the same, and the reduction of 
each unit footprint would create additional open space.  Mr. Maniaci briefly 
addressed the ownership of a detached site condominium. 
 
 

6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 068 A) – Proposed Bethany 
Villa Housing Association, West of John R Road and South of E. Big Beaver (1680 
Jackson), Section 26, Currently Zoned RM-1 (Multiple Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the proposed Preliminary Site Plan 
application.  He addressed the required setbacks between buildings in an RM-1 
zoning district, and the formula established by Section 31.30.00.C.  Mr. Branigan is 
confident the proposed community building location exceeds the minimum setback 
requirement.   
 
Mr. Branigan further addressed parking with respect to a possible parking reduction 
and/or shared parking with the adjacent church. 
 
Michael Houseman, construction manager, of Wolverine North America, 4045 
Barden, Grand Rapids, was present.  Mr. Houseman said the purpose of the 
community building is to house the offices of the housing association, as well as 
provide a facility for crafts, Meals on Wheels and similar functions.  He addressed 
the potential to reduce parking on site and/or reach a shared parking agreement 
with the adjacent church.  Mr. Houseman indicated the association board is 
agreeable to working with the City on a parking reduction.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 10, 2010 
  
 
 

3 
 

Mr. Savidant said the Planning Department is comfortable in going forward with the 
preliminary site plan as submitted, noting a parking reduction, landbanking of 
parking and/or a shared parking agreement with the church could be approved 
administratively at the time of final site plan submission. 
 
Mr. Edmunds said the open space is wonderful, and a community building would be 
an asset.  He would be amenable to shared parking. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-08-056 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the proposed Bethany Villa 
Housing Association Community Building, located West of John R Road and South 
of E. Big Beaver, Section 26, within the RM-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 
1. Parking reductions to Zoning Ordinance required levels and/or landbanking of 

parking may be granted administratively by staff. 
2. If additional permanent parking reductions are requested, such action shall be 

brought back to the Planning Commission. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Savidant asked for clarification on the motion.  It is understood that the 
petitioner would landbank up to 50 spaces.  Should the petitioner not construct any 
parking spaces and a shared parking arrangement is agreed to by the church 
located to the north, the landbanked parking will remain until such time that the 
spaces are needed.  Further, should the petitioner decide to eliminate and not 
landbank the parking spaces, the petitioner must come back to the Planning 
Commission. 
 
There was discussion on the provision of handicapped parking spaces. 
• Motion amenable to allow handicapped spaces on site. 
• Petitioner to create handicapped spaces as well as employee spaces on site. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 10, 2010 
  
 
 

4 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE 
PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 382) – Proposed The Barkshire, North of Maple, 
West of Crooks (1501 Temple City Drive), Section 29, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light 
Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the 
proposed Preliminary Site Plan application.  The outstanding items Mr. Branigan 
addressed were: 
• Corrections to site data on site plan sheets. 
• Removal of five (5) parallel parking spaces to the east. 
• Alternative parking proposal; reduction of parking. 
• Fencing details. 
 
Mr. Branigan expressed support of the application conditioned on acceptable 
solutions to the deficiencies noted, and the applicant submitting a revised set of 
plans reflecting the elimination of the five (5) parallel parking spaces and proposed 
parking solution. 
 
Planning Commission members discussed the following: 
• Five (5) parallel parking spaces on the east. 
• Noise concerns; communications received by Planning Department. 
• Surrounding tenants/uses. 
 
Mark Farlow of Victor Saroki & Associates, 430 N. Old Woodward, Birmingham, 
was present.   
 
Also present were Rita Dunker, property owner, and Steven Sorensen of 
Professional Engineering Associates, 2430 Rochester Court, Troy. 
 
Mr. Farlow indicated they met with City staff to discuss the proposed plan.  He said 
Ms. Dunker, as a good neighbor, made contact with those who voiced concerns in 
writing to the Planning Department.  Mr. Farlow addressed noise concerns, fencing 
material, the design layout (geothermal technology, floor plan, play areas, kennels), 
and daily operations of the facility. 
 
Ms. Dunker discussed her management experience with this type of facility.   
 
Mr. Sorensen indicated it was understood from their discussions with the City’s 
Engineering Department that they are supportive of the proposed pet waste 
elimination method. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 10, 2010 
  
 
 

5 
 

Items discussed at length were: 
• Fencing material (opaque). 
• Insulation (interior and exterior walls, windows, doors, sound continuation). 
• Artificial turf; aggregate base. 
• Pet waste elimination. 

o Solid and liquid. 
o Storm sewer or sanitary sewer. 
o Resolution relating to Special Use Approval for kennel at 2300 Bellingham. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Members Ullmann and Sanzica said they could not support the application as 
proposed because of their concerns with the proposed pet waste elimination 
method. 
 
At the request of Mr. Tagle, Mr. Farlow said the proposed parking spaces along the 
east façade would be designated for employee parking.  He is agreeable to 
providing a paved walkway to service the spaces to the front entrance.  Mr. Farlow 
said the lane is shared with the property owner to the east, and is one-way 
directional only.  Mr. Farlow said he would work with the City on an appropriate 
parking solution.   
 
Mr. Motzny clarified that the matter of storm sewer or sanitary sewer for pet waste 
elimination is an Engineering Department determination usually.  But he noted the 
Planning Commission has the latitude with a Special Use application to impose 
conditions on an approval or postpone the item to seek further information and/or 
guidance from the Engineering Department.   
 
Mr. Branigan asked to make the record clear that his written review does not 
expressly support approval of the Special Use application until such time that items 
noted in the report are addressed. 
 
It was agreed that City staff and the Planning Consultant would meet with the 
petitioner to discuss alternative solutions for the treatment of pet waste and screen 
wall materials. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-08-057 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone action on this item until such time that: 
1. The petitioner, staff, and consultants review and revise liquid waste 

management systems and screen wall materials to improve the 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 10, 2010 
  
 
 

6 
 

environmental impact of the project and to provide adequate privacy and 
wellbeing to the neighboring property owners; and 

2. The applicant has agreed to add four (4) additional parking spaces to the 
main parking lot and eliminate the five (5) spaces to the east of the building. 

 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
There was a brief discussion on: 
• Transit Center.   

o September 8 Joint Meeting with Birmingham. 
o Potential to meet prior to scheduled Joint Meeting. 
o Legal clarification on site plan approval (Michigan Zoning Enabling Act). 

• Zoning Ordinance Rewrite. 
o Potential to schedule additional meetings in effort to meet goals/objectives. 
o Update on progress made by Planning Consultant and Planning Department. 

 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:07 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2010 PC Minutes\Draft\08-10-10 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



  PC 2010.08.24 
  Agenda Item # 8 
 

 
DATE: August 19, 2010 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE 

PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 382) – Proposed The Barkshire, North of 
Maple, West of Crooks (1501 Temple City Drive), Section 29, Currently Zoned 
M-1 (Light Industrial) District 

 
The applicant, Victor Saroki & Associates Architects PC, proposes to renovate a vacant 
industrial building into a dog kennel and grooming facility.  Dog kennels are permitted subject 
to Special Use Approval, therefore a public hearing is required.  
 
The Planning Commission considered this item at the August 10, 2010 Regular meeting and 
postponed action on this item until such time that: 
 

1. The petitioner, staff, and consultants review and revise liquid waste 
management systems and screen wall materials to improve the environmental 
impact of the project and to provide adequate privacy and wellbeing to the 
neighboring property owners; and 

2. The applicant has agreed to add four (4) additional parking spaces to the main 
parking lot and eliminate the five (5) spaces to the east of the building. 

 
The applicant revised the plans to address these issues, including meeting with 
representatives of the Engineering Department to address the liquid waste management 
issue.  The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarizes the 
project.  Please be prepared to discuss the application at the August 24, 2010 Planning 
Commission Regular meeting. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Report prepared by CWA. 
3. Parking Analysis, prepared by PEA. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 382 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 382 The Barkshire  Sec 29\SU-382 PC Report 08 24 2010.docx 



SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE 

PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 382) – Proposed The Barkshire, North of 
Maple, West of Crooks (1501 Temple City Drive), Section 29, Currently Zoned M-
1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-08- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
number of required parking spaces for the proposed commercial kennel to 14 
when a total of 25 spaces are required on the site based on off-street parking 
space requirements, as per Article XL.  This 11-space reduction is justified 
through a comparison of parking spaces provided for similar uses in the area, 
as outlined in the Parking Analysis prepared by PEA.  Furthermore, this 
reduction will allow for additional pervious surface throughout the site. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed The Barkshire commercial kennel, located north of Maple, west of 
Crooks on 1501 Temple City Drive, Section 29, within the M-1 zoning district, be 
(granted, subject to the following conditions): 
___________________________________________________________) or  
 
(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 
Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED / DENIED 
 
 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 382 The Barkshire  Sec 29\Proposed Resolution 08 24 10.docx 



The Barkshire

7/14/2010

Legend

1: 2,038

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1700340 340Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



The Barkshire

7/14/2010

Legend

1: 2,038

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1700340 340Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Zoning
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(B-1) Local Business District
(B-2) Community Business District
(B-3) General Business District
(R-C) Research Center District
(C-F) Community Facilities District
(C-J) Consent Judgment
(E-P) Environmental Protection District
(R-EC) Residential Elder Care
(P-1) Vehicular Parking District
(H-S) Highway Service District
(M-1) Light Industrial District
(O-1) Office Building District
(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District
(OSC) Office Service Commercial District
(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District
(R-2) Two Family Residential District
(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density
(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)
(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)
(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



 
 
 

 Date:  August 5, 2010 
Rev.: August 18, 2010 

 
 

Special Use Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Victor Saroki, FAIA, on behalf of the Barkshire 
 
Project Name: The Barkshire 
 
Plan Date: July 12, 2010 
 
Location: 1501 Temple City Drive 
 
Zoning: M-1, Light Industrial  
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan Approval, Special Use Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION
 
We are in receipt of a revised preliminary site plan and special use submittal for the reuse of an 
existing industrial building for a pet day care facility/commercial kennel.  The project proposes a 
series of major improvements including a new parking lot, new building interior and exterior 
renovations, new landscaping, and a new outdoor dog play area.   
 
Since the previous submittal, the applicant has completed a series of changes, including, but not 
limited to, the following: 
 

1. The formerly proposed five spaces along the east façade have been removed and replaced 
by four new spaces in the main proposed parking lot. 



The Barkshire 8-18-2010 

2 

2. The underground drain beneath the play area and underground aggregate infiltration is no 
longer connected to the storm sewer system.  Rather, it is designed to allow for 
infiltration down through the soils, with an overflow backup that drains to the sanitary 
sewer system.  We support this change, and final details can be coordinated with the 
engineering department prior to final site plan approval. 

3. A covered “relief area” has been added along the south façade. 
4. A curb has been added to the perimeter of the entire outdoor play area where fencing is 

proposed.  This will result in the proposed fencing being much closer to grade than 
originally designed, limiting the gap between the bottom of the fence and the curb to a 
maximum of 2 inches. It will also guarantee that no runoff will leave the play area for 
adjacent sites. 

 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the south side of Temple City Drive, west of Crooks Road. 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The parcel is 0.88 acres in size. 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to use the existing building for a dog and cat day care facility. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property is currently a vacant former industrial building.   
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned M-1, Light Industrial District.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels 
North: M-1, Light Industrial District 
West: M-1, Light Industrial District 
South: M-1, Light Industrial District 
East: M-1, Light Industrial District 
 

BUILDING LOCATION AND SITE ARRANGEMENT
 

The existing building is well positioned on this smaller site, with an area along the west side of 
the building available for a new parking area and the new proposed outdoor play area.  The 
applicant intends to remove and replace the existing parking lot with a revised layout.  The site is 
accessed from the north boundary along Temple City Drive.  The applicant intends to maintain 
the same access.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None.   
 



The Barkshire 8-18-2010 

3 

 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS
 
The site is home to an existing building.  Required and existing setbacks, which are not being 
altered by the project, are as follows: 
 

 
There are two previously existing legal nonconformities on this site.  Both the east side yard 
setback and the front yard setback are slightly deficient.  However, the applicant is not proposing 
the increase the level of nonconformity and they are permitted to remain. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION
 
Proposed Circulation: 
The site is accessed from the north boundary along Temple City Drive.  The applicant intends to 
maintain the same access point, but redesign and rebuild the approach itself.  The City Traffic 
Engineer is concerned that the reconfiguration of the drive may impact access to the adjacent site 
to the west.  The applicant should demonstrate that the proposed driveway reconfiguration will 
not negatively impact the site to the west. 
 
The site plan no longer includes a row of new spaces along the east façade of the building. 
 
Sidewalks:  
The site provides a walkway from the proposed parking lot to the front door of the building.  
This neighborhood has no frontage sidewalks. 
 
Items to be Addressed: Demonstrate that the proposed driveway will not negatively impact the 
site to the west.  
,  

 Required Provided 

Setbacks   

Front 50 feet 49.92 feet 

Side East 10 feet 9.81 feet 

Side West 10 feet 79.7 feet 

Rear 20 feet 25.81 feet 

Building Height 40 Feet, 3 stories 22 feet, 4 inches 

Lot Coverage 40 percent 29.5 percent 



The Barkshire 8-18-2010 

4 

 
PARKING 
 
Proposed Parking: 
The site plan indicates a total of 14 parking spaces which includes 1 barrier free parking space.  
   
Parking Calculations: 
The parking calculations provided by the applicant are as follows. 
 

Required Provided 
One (1) for each employee in the largest 

working shift, plus one (1) for each fifteen 
(15) animals within the board capacity of 

the building; or one (1) for each four 
hundred fifty (450) square feet of gross 
floor area, whichever is greater.  The 

applicant has used the following: One (1) 
space per 450 square feet of gross floor 
area = 11,382/450 = 25.29 (25 spaces) 

14 spaces.  The applicant has also 
had a parking study completed and 

is requesting a parking 
modification 

 
The applicant has now provided 14 spaces parking spaces, 11 less than that required by 
Ordinance.  The formerly proposed spaces, accessible only from the east property, have been 
removed.  The applicant added four more spaces to the main parking lot to offset this change. 
 
The applicant has provided a parking study.  The study states that approximately 15 spaces 
should be required based on other facilities in the area and their existing parking space counts 
compared with their number of kennels and square footage.  We believe the study is sound and 
provides good guidance on parking demand.  Consequently, we support the applicant receiving a 
parking modification to permit a reduced number of spaces.  As noted in our previous review, we 
support the removal the five proposed spaces along the east façade and their replacement with 
four additional spaces in the main lot.  We support a parking modification of 11 spaces, 
accommodating this design and very nearly matching the average number of spaces provided by 
other commercial kennels in the area. 
 
Items to be Addressed: Obtain a modification of 11 spaces from the Planning Commission.   
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
The site is previously developed and contains no natural features.  The proposed plan would not 
impact any protected natural features, and will actually improve the natural condition of the site 
by adding a refreshed landscaped area. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 



The Barkshire 8-18-2010 

5 

 
LANDSCAPING 
 
A landscape plan has been submitted as part of this application.  The plan includes 6 new trees to 
satisfy the frontage tree requirement (1 tree for every 30 linear feet of frontage = 160 feet/30 = 
5.3 = 6 trees).   The site plan also provides adequate greenbelt along Temple City Drive.  The 
site plan includes 12.6 percent landscaped area in the front and side yards, not including the 
greenbelt, exceeding the minimum 10 percent requirement. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None.  
 
LIGHTING 
 
The applicant has not provided a photometric plan or any lighting details for this project.  Full 
lighting details will be provided for final site plan approval.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
SPECIAL USE REVIEW 
 
For any special use, according to Section 03.31.04, the Planning Commission shall review the 
request, supplementary materials either in support or opposition thereto, as well as the Planning 
Department’s report, at a Public Hearing established for that purpose, and shall either grant or 
deny the request, table action on the request, or grant the request subject to specific conditions. 
 
Required Information 
In the M-1 District, commercial kennels are permitted by Section 28.30.07 as a special use. As 
such, a special use permit must be issued to allow the project to move forward, in accordance 
with Section 03.31.00. Section 03.33.00 establishes the information required for a special use 
application. All required information has been provided. 
 
Use Standards 
Section 28.30.07 lists two conditions for kennels within the M-1 District. They are as follows: 
 
A. The site shall be no closer than three hundred (300) feet from any residentially zoned or used 
property. This distance provision shall not apply to residentially zoned land which is developed 
or committed for uses other than the construction of residential dwellings.  
 
B. A Commercial Kennel establishment may include ancillary uses such as pet grooming and pet 
obedience training. 
 
The proposed facility is not within 300 feet of residential property and may include ancillary 
uses.  The use-specific standards of special use approval for a commercial kennel have been met.  
 
Standards of Approval 



The Barkshire 8-18-2010 

6 

Section 03.31.05 states that before approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the 
Planning Commission, or the City Council, where indicated, shall find that: 
 

1. The land use or activity being proposed shall be of such location, size and character as 
to be compatible with the orderly development or use of adjacent land and/or Districts. 

2. The land use or activity under consideration is within the capacity limitations of the 
existing or proposed public services and facilities which serve its location.  

 
We believe the land use as proposed by the site plan is of such location and character as to be 
compatible with the orderly development or use of adjacent land and/or Districts. The only 
outstanding concern that we believe merits consideration is the possibility of noise from barking 
dogs.  Given that the adjacent properties are all zoned M-1 District and are used for non-
residential purposes, and that the applicant has taken measures to screen the property, we do not 
believe that dog noise will create a significant disturbance.  The majority of the time the dogs 
spend at the kennel will be spent indoors, where barking will not be audible from adjacent sites. 
 
The City Engineer had no comment with regard to public services and facilities in this revised 
plan. 
 
Items to be addressed: Discuss noise concerns with the Planning Commission. 
 
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Section 3.43.01 establishes the requirements for preliminary site plan approval.  The minimum 
standards necessary for review have been met. 

 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
This project has been modified to address our concerns and the concerns of the Planning 
Commission.  Therefore, we recommend that the Planning Commission grant the request for a 
parking modification of 11 spaces and special use and preliminary site plan approval.   
 

 
 



























From: Jerry Williams
To: Planning
Subject: Planning File # SU-382 The Barkshire : Parcel # 88-20-29-476-002
Date: Friday, July 23, 2010 4:45:12 PM

Re: Planning File # SU-382  The Barkshire :  Parcel #  88-20-29-476-002

Dear Planning Department,

I am the tenant/owner of 1450 Temple City Drive and am across the street and 2 
buildings down from the proposed parcel zone change.

I am strongly opposed to this zoning request change.  I can appreciate the desire of 
the individual to start or move a business, however I feel this would further reduce 
the value of our property and deter further investment or expansion by other's on 
the street.

Please do not allow this zoning change request.

Respectfully,

Jerry Williams
Vice President
Detection Systems & Engineering Co.

mailto:jerry@dseco.com
mailto:planning@troymi.gov


From: WK Jackson
To: Planning
Subject: Planning File No: SU-382 The Barkshire
Date: Monday, August 09, 2010 9:49:59 AM

Dear Planning Commission,

Please accept my comments in writing because I am unable to attend 
your scheduled meeting.

In light of the high vacancy rate in commercial property in southern 
Troy, any proposed new enterprise is to be applauded.  But one has to 
ask how such an operation would adversely affect the rental and sale 
prospects of neighboring business.  Or should I say, businesses 
within  earshot of the barks, howls, yaps and snarls that would 
resound from a commercial kennel--especially one that is located in  
an older,  thin-walled building to which are added outdoor runs and 
exercise spaces.   My exposure to kennels  suggests that  sounds carry 
further than one might expect.    And this stress-induced barking soon 
gets on the nerves of those forced to listen to it. Perhaps that is 
why the only other Barkshire kennel I could find through Google Earth, 
is located in semi-rural Wisconsin with a  bar and a fireworks dealer 
within close earshot.

I am an advertising photographer whose studio is just two-buildings  
removed from the proposed kennel.  I fear that barking may irritate 
clients in my parking lot and make it more difficult to work inside my 
studio

Thank you,

Bill Jackson

1490 Premier Dr.
Troy, MI  48084

mailto:2billjackson@earthlink.net
mailto:planning@troymi.gov


From: Francis Engelhardt
To: Planning
Cc: Francis Engelhardt
Subject: Reference Public Hearing Planning File # SU-382 The Barkshire
Date: Saturday, July 31, 2010 3:39:56 PM

This is in reference to a application for a Special Use file # SU-382 at 1501 Temple City Drive.

I am the owner of a 6-unit multi-tenant building at 1490 Premier Road 88-20-29-476-018, which is
located to the south of the subject property.

Since there are five tenants that utilize my building, I am concerned about the noise that a dog kennel
will produce  at 1501 Temple City Drive directly to the north of my property.  I have tenants who have
expressed their concern also to me and I do not want a special use which produces objectionable noise
to cause my tenants to vacate their suites.

Since I am unable to attend the August 10 hearing, please register my objection to this "Special Use"
request to the Planning Commission.

Sincerely,

Francis A. Engelhardt, member
Engelwood Resources L.L.C.
P. O. Box 412
Birmingham, Michigan

mailto:Engelwood@MMCA.com
mailto:planning@troymi.gov
mailto:Engelwood@MMCA.com


From: Jill  Denman
To: Planning
Subject: zoning request on Temple City Drive
Date: Tuesday, August 10, 2010 11:15:57 AM

Good Day,

I work at 1521 Temple City Drive right next door to the building seeking a zoning request.  I 
have no problem with the Barksdale Company opening a business there.  I went to the 
company's website and it looks like an established well run business.  I am happy that a new 
business is coming to Troy.

I know a photographer came to our company upset that they wanted to open because he 
thought he would hear barking and howling at night.  I doubt he does much photography at 
night plus his rented space is on another street with a building in between his and the proposed 
Barksdale Company.

In my opinion lets welcome new business to Troy with welcome arms.  Any questions, please cal 
me at 248-267-0130.

Jill Denman-Duggan

mailto:jstkdd@aol.com
mailto:planning@troymi.gov


From: Joe Del
To: Planning
Cc: Dhawal Zatakia
Subject: SU-382 THE BARKSIRE
Date: Tuesday, July 27, 2010 1:07:18 PM

Relative to Parcel No. 88-20-29-476-002
1501 Temple City Drive

Pls accept the following comments relative to the above:
I have experienced the noise level barking dogs in close proximity of kennel
This continuous barking is noise pollution to neighboring businesses and
is disruptive in the daily work process.
In one case I know is a business in the Rochester Area that had to move
because a kennel moved in next door...common wall......strip
mall....barking noise levels where distracting....
It is the continuously barking that creates the problem...pollution

I have nothing against anyone running a business, but this kind of a
business should be noise isolated from the businesses nearby
Thank You
Joe Del
for
AMERICAN HYDROSTATICS
1750 BLANEY RD
TROY
48084

mailto:joedel@americanhydrostatics.com
mailto:planning@troymi.gov
mailto:dz@americanhydrostatics.com


From: Jarvis Williams
To: Planning
Subject: file SU-382 THE BARKSHIRE
Date: Friday, July 23, 2010 5:19:52 PM

AS  OWNER OF THE PROPERTY @1450 TEMPLE CITY DR, WE ARE DEAD SET
AGAINST HAVING SUCH A BUSINESS ON OUR STREET.
THIS WILL CREATE A CONSTANT NOISE AND BE INCONSISTENT WITH OUR
INDUSTRIAL ZONING.
SUCH A BUSINESS MUST BE LOCATED OUTSIDE OF MAJOR POPULATION AREAS.
SHOULD YOU HAVE ADDED CONCERN PLEASE ADVISE.
RESPECTFULLY
JARVIS WILLIAMS MGR
TEMPLE CITY INV LLC

mailto:jarviswilliams@gmail.com
mailto:planning@troymi.gov


PC 2010.08.24 
  Agenda Item # 9 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: August 18, 2010 
 
To: Planning Commission 
 
From: R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
Subject: COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236) – 

Discussion with Representatives from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 
Representatives of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA) will attend the August 24, 
2010 Special/Study meeting to discuss the following information related to the 
Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance rewrite: 

 
1. Article 20 – Form-Based Codes 

 
A copy of the draft Downtown Development Authority Design Guidelines is attached.  
 
Please be prepared to discuss this item at the August 24, 2010 Special/Study meeting. 
 
 
Attachment: 

1. Article 20 – Form-Based Code (draft). 
2. Downtown Development Authority Design Guidelines (draft). 

 
 
cc:  Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 236 Zoning Ordinance Rewrite\PC Memo 08 24 2010.docx 



 

City of Troy 20 - 1 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

ARTICLE 20 
 

FORM-BASED DISTRICTS 
 

 5 
SECTION 20.01 GENERAL PURPOSE AND INTENT 
 
A. The Zoning Ordinance regulates the intensity and use of development, which is appropriate 

in most parts of the City.  There are also areas within the City in which the Master Plan 
places greater emphasis on regulating urban form and character of development as well as 10 
use and intensity of use. 

 
B. These regulations are based on two (2) significant factors:  site context and building form.  

Site context is derived from existing and desired characteristics of the area where these 
regulations are applied.  Areas are distinguished from one another by their size and 15 
configuration of the site, street patterns, location, and intensity of use.  Therefore, 
considering site context provides a customized approach to the inherent conditions of the 
areas where these regulations are applied. 

 
Building form addresses the manner in which buildings and structures relate to their lots, 20 
surrounding buildings, and street frontage.  Building form standards control height, 
placement, building configuration, parking location, and ground story activation applicable 
to the site context. 

 
C. The specific intent of these regulations are as follows: 25 
 

1. Ensure that development is of human scale, primarily pedestrian-oriented and 
designed to create attractive streetscapes and pedestrian spaces. 

 
2. Promote infill development and redevelopment to expand employment and 30 

economic base. 
 
3. Promote mixed-use development in both a horizontal and vertical form. 
 
4. Ensure reasonable transition between higher intensity development and adjacent 35 

neighborhoods. 
 
5. Improve mobility options and reduce the need for on-site parking by encouraging 

alternative means of transportation. 
 40 
D. Regulations are tailored to meet the intent of more specific districts.  These districts and 

their intents are set forth elsewhere in this Article. 
 
 

45 



 

City of Troy 20 - 2 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

SECTION 20.02 APPLICABILITY AND ORGANIZATION 
 
A. Applicability. 
 

1. Any new use or expansion of existing use that requires site plan review shall comply 5 
with the requirements of this Article and other applicable requirements of this 
Ordinance. 

 
2. The requirements of this Article shall not apply to: 
 10 

a. Continuation of a permitted use within an existing structure; 
 
b. Changes of use within existing structures that do not require increased 

parking; 
 15 
c. Normal repair and maintenance of existing structures that do not increase its 

size or parking demand; and 
 
d. Continuation of a non-conforming situation in accordance with Article 

_____. 20 
 

B. Regulating Plans.  Each area of the City to which these standards apply shall be governed 
by a Regulating Plan, as set forth in Section __________.  The Regulating Plan determines 
Building Form and Allowable Use for each property within a Form-Based District. 

 25 
C. Allowable Uses.  Authorized uses are based upon the Regulating Plan set forth in Section 

_____.  Authorized land uses are organized by use groups.  The intensity that a site may be 
developed is governed by the Regulating Plan and applicable site design requirements. 

 
D. Building Form Standards.  Building Form Standards, set forth in Section _______, 30 

establish the parameters for building form, height, and placement. 
 
E. Design Standards.  Design Standards, set forth in Section ________, are supplementary to 

other requirements of the Ordinance and regulate parking, landscaping, and other site design 
requirements. 35 

 
 
SECTION 20.03 BIG BEAVER DISTRICT 
 
A. Intent.  The Big Beaver (BB) District is intended to implement the policies set forth n the 40 

Big Beaver Corridor Study, Big Beaver Design Guidelines, and the City’s Master Plan.  
These regulations are intended to promote a unified vision for transforming Big Beaver 
Road into a world-class destination focused on mixed-use development and increased land 
use intensity that is oriented as much to the needs of the pedestrian as to those of the 
automobile. 45 

 



 

City of Troy 20 - 3 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

B. Regulating Plan. 
 

1. Explanation. 
 

a. The Regulating Plan, as set forth in Figure ___________, identifies 5 
allowable uses and permissible development within the District based on 
location. 

 
b. The Regulating Plan is based on two (2) factors:  Site Type and Street Type.  

Site Types, as set forth in Section _______, are determined by lot size, 10 
location, and relationship to neighboring sites.  Street Types, as set forth in 
Section ______, recognize that street patterns within the City of Troy are 
established.  Streets range from primary corridors which carry a large 
volume of traffic to local streets which convey lower volumes of 
neighborhood traffic. 15 

 
c. Site Types.  The Regulating Plan includes three (3) different Site Types, 

described as follows: 
 

i. Site Type A (large scale regional sites) – Site Type A properties are 20 
predominantly between 10.01 and twenty (20) acres in area, but they 
are more strongly related to one another through their nature and 
large, campus-style properties with multiple large buildings designed 
to function as one unit. 

 25 
Walkability within and between sites and provision of supporting 
buildings and uses are important to the success of the very large, 
Type A developments.  They should be designed with a mix of uses 
in mind to allow for users to obtain basic services on or immediately 
near the site.  Especially within large office centers, where hundreds 30 
of workers may populate the site during the day, restaurants, postal 
facilities and other daily needs should be integrated within existing 
buildings or permitted to exist in smaller out-lot developments or 
nearby developments in Type B or C categories. 

 35 
Parking for Type A sites should be accommodated in structured 
parking whenever possible to maximize the use of the site for the 
primary use and to allow the site to be developed more densely than 
it could with surface parking. 

 40 
The site design should strongly focus on putting the densest 
components of the project within close range of the primary right-of-
way to combat the vast open areas that frequently make such sites 
difficult or undesirable to cross on foot.  A busy arrangement of 
campus uses along the right of way in outlots will help keep 45 



 

City of Troy 20 - 4 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

pedestrians engaged and will make these larger sites fit better with 
surrounding smaller sites in the Type B and C categories. 

 
ii. Site Type B (medium sites/classic retail sites/mixed use) – The sites 

in Site Type B are mostly between 2.51 and ten (10) acres in area, 5 
and are located at the edges of larger, Type A sites.  They are located 
on sites large enough to warrant additional consideration to 
landscaping and surface parking in that they can often accommodate 
large surface lots, which can compromise the cohesiveness of the 
area if not designed with connectivity in mind. 10 

 
This category also includes larger, single-use developments situated 
nearby one another.  Hotels, single office buildings, and other 
medium single building developments often fall into this category.  
They often house employment centers. 15 

 
The Site Type B category should be designed with integration in 
mind.  Integration with one another, with Type A sites, and in 
support of much larger destination retail and office complex sites in 
Type A.  This will allow for better interaction between users, which 20 
could lead to a more readily shared customer and tenant base and 
could help reduce Big Beaver traffic. 

 
iii. Site Type C (small sites/outlot sites) – Made up mostly of lots in the 

two and a half (2.5) acre and smaller range, the Site Type C category 25 
is reserved for the smallest, single-use sites developed for 
individually standing businesses.  Small coffee shops or fast food 
restaurants would often be found in this category, as well as small 
multi-tenant office buildings or single-tenant office buildings. 

 30 
Site Type C is primarily found along Big Beaver Road in areas 
between the “pulses” of major intersections, where lot depths are 
constrained and where older, smaller buildings predominate.  These 
sites must be designed to better integrate with their surroundings to 
contribute to a more cohesive District, a more consistent building 35 
line, and more efficient access between sites.  Good access for 
pedestrians and cross access for vehicles will help sites in this 
Category reduce trips entering and existing from Big Beaver Road. 

 
Groups of Site Type C properties may make excellent candidates for 40 
coordinated combination of properties to create more cohesive mini-
destinations. 
 

d. Street Types.  The Regulation Plan includes three (3) different Street Types, 
described as follows: 45 

 



 

City of Troy 20 - 5 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

i. Street Type A (Primary Corridor) – Category A refers to Big Beaver 
Road.  Big Beaver has the widest spacing between building fronts of 
all roads within the form-based code area, and has many unique 
characteristics. The category is meant to reflect the “world class 
boulevard” characteristics established in the Big Beaver Corridor 5 
Study, and is used in the highest profile areas of the City of Troy. 

 
Category A will integrate features designed to accommodate through 
traffic and local traffic, will focus on gateways, and will enhance the 
Big Beaver Corridor experience.  This category will reflect all the 10 
strongest and most prominent features proposed in the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study. 

 
Strong landscaping regimens, pedestrian and traffic-scale lighting, 
effective signage, wide non-motorized pathways, and a 15 
complementary relationship with transit opportunities will make 
Category A a distinguished area within the region. 

 
ii. Street Type B (Arterial) – Category B is meant for the main north-

south roads that cross the form-based code district.  These roads 20 
connect the area with the rest of the City and the region.  They are 
characterized by a narrower building-to-building distance, safe and 
effective non-motorized pathways designed to encourage users to 
reach Big Beaver Road by bike or on foot, effective signage and 
lighting, and few individual residential curb cuts. 25 

 
The crosswalks spanning Arterial Roads will make use of a series of 
features intended to protect pedestrians by establishing equity 
between pedestrians and motorists through effective design.  Raised 
walks of high-quality materials, signage, landscaping, and pedestrian 30 
respite islands are several options that may be found within Category 
B. 

 
Arterial Roads will also be characterized by strong landscaping 
designed to mitigate the negative impacts of high traffic volumes 35 
from adjacent residential areas which provide a unique and 
memorable visual character for the roadway. 

 
The intersections between Category A and B roads will be marquis 
places with enhanced community and corridor landmarks.  The 40 
spaces will be defined by a stable and consistent building-to-building 
ratio complemented by landmark structures, superior landscaping 
and community signage with medians, and memorable architecture. 

 
iii. Street Type C (Local/Collector) – Category C roads are those roads 45 

tying together smaller areas within the District.  They have a more 



 

City of Troy 20 - 6 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

varied and localized character than Categories A or B, depending on 
their context within predominantly office, retail, or residential areas.  
They act as the backbone of smaller neighborhoods within the area 
and tie those areas to Category A and B roads. 

 5 
Category C roads will be very welcoming of non-motorized users 
and will have defined pedestrian rest areas and other amenities 
whenever possible.  Their scale will be similar to that of a main road 
within a conventional subdivision or industrial park, and their width 
will be determined primarily on their purpose.  A Category C road 10 
within an industrial area may be required to be wider than one in a 
residential area, although their purpose is similar. 

 
Category C roads will have a much higher frequency of curb cuts 
than Category A and B roads, and will often provide direct access to 15 
retail centers or office complexes.  Sufficient width should be 
retained on either side of the roadway whenever possible to allow for 
a rigorous landscaping plan to ensure that the immediate uses served 
are adequately protected from the moderate traffic volumes 
anticipated on a Category C road. 20 



 

City of Troy 20 - 7 Article 20  
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

 
Map _____: Regulating Plan 



 

City of Troy 20 - 8
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

 
C. Authorized Use Groups. 
 

1. Explanation. 
 5 

a. Authorized uses are categorized by Use Groups as set forth in Section 
20.04.B, Table ____.  Use groups generally contain similar types of uses in 
terms of function, character, and intensity. 

 
b. Table ______ assigns allowable Use Groups to locations based on the 10 

Regulating Plan.  Use Groups are classified in the following manner: 
 

i. Permitted Use Groups.  These Use Groups are permitted as of right 
in the locations specified, and are depicted in Table ____ with the 
symbol P. 15 

 
ii. Permitted Use Groups in Upper Stories.  These Use Groups are 

permitted as of right in upper stories only in the location specified 
and are depicted in Table ______ with the symbol UP. 

 20 
iii. Special Use Groups.  These Use Groups are permitted after review 

and approval by the Planning Commission, in accordance with the 
procedures set forth in Article 7.0 and the standards in this 
Ordinance.  Use Groups requiring special use approval are depicted 
in Table ______ with the symbol S. 25 

 
iv. Prohibited Use Groups.  These Use Groups are prohibited in the 

locations specified, and are depicted in Table ______ with the 
symbol NP. 

 30 
v. Uses permitted in all locations within the District: Public parks and 

essential public services are permitted by right in all locations in the 
Big Beaver District. 

 
vi. Similar Uses.  If a use is not listed but is similar to other uses within 35 

a Use Group, the Zoning Administrator may make the interpretation 
that the use is similar to other uses within a Use Group. 

 
The Zoning Administrator may also make the determination whether 
the use is permitted as of right, permitted in upper stories only, or 40 
permitted as a special use.  The Zoning Administrator may refer the 
review of a similar use to the Planning Commission for a 
recommendation. 

 
45 



 

City of Troy 20 - 9
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

Table _______ 
Use Groups by Category 

 
PRINCIPAL USE 
Use Group 1 
Residential Uses: 
One-Family dwellings 
Two-Family dwellings 
Use Group 2 
Residential/Lodging Uses: 
Multiple-Family dwellings 
Live/Work units 
Senior assisted/independent living 
Group day care 
Child care centers 
Use Group 3 
Office/Institution: 
General office 
Professional office 
Hospitals 
Medical office 
Primary/secondary schools 
Colleges 
Places of worship 
Data centers 
Technology centers/office research 
Experimental Research & Testing Labs 
Public service buildings 
Funeral homes 
Veterinary clinic 



 

City of Troy 20 - 10
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

 

Use Group 4 
Auto/Transportation Uses: 
Auto sales 
Auto service station 
Auto repair station 
Auto body repair 
Auto wash 
Use Group 5 
Retail/Entertainment Uses: 
Financial institutions 
General retail 
Retail, large format 
Multi-tenant shopping centers 
Fitness centers 
Theaters 
Indoor recreation establishments 
Restaurant 
Personal service 
Dry cleaning 
Hair care 
Use Group 6 
Misc. Commercial Uses: 
Building & lumber supply 
Garden centers, nurseries 
Outdoor recreation 
Golf driving ranges, mini-golf 
Commercial outdoor storage 
Mini / Self-Storage 
Commercial kennels 
Pet day care 
Use Group 7 
Industrial Uses: 
Contractor’s Equipment Storage 
Food Products 
Manufacturing, Processing, etc. 
Metal Plating 
Plastics 
Printing 
Tool & Die, Gauge & Machine Shops 
Truck / Trailer Rental 
Warehousing / Wholesale 

 



 

City of Troy 20 - 11 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

Table _______ 
Use Groups Permitted 

 

Street Type A: Big 
Beaver

Street Type B: 
Arterials

Street Type C: 
Collectors

Street Type A: Big 
Beaver

Street Type B: 
Arterials

Street Type C: 
Collectors

Street Type A: Big 
Beaver

Street Type B: 
Arterials

Street Type C: 
Collectors

1 NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP

2 UP UP P UP UP P UP UP P

3 P P P P P P P P P

4 NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP

5 P P P P P P P P P

6 NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP

7 NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP

Site Type A: Major Sites Site Type B: Medium Sites Site Type C: Minor Sites

Use Group

 5 
 



 

City of Troy 20 - 12 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE: August 19, 2010 

D. Building Form Standards.   
 
1. The Big Beaver Form Based District permits a series of potential building forms, 

dependant on the site’s location. The six building forms established in this section 
are as follows: 5 

 
a. Building Form A: Small, generally single purpose buildings for retail, office, 

restaurant, or service uses.  Typically situated in an out lot of a larger 
classification building form, or on a smaller, more remote site location 
within the district. 10 

 
b. Building Form B: Smaller, multiple-tenant buildings for retail, restaurant, 

office, service, or residential uses.  This category also includes multiple-
tenant center style development, although it requires a second story to 
encourage a mix of uses or a higher-density project than those 15 
conventionally associated with a classic roadside retail shopping center. 

 
c. Building Form C: This category is primarily designed for attached residential 

or live-work residential units.  Townhouses and urban-style residential 
developments that are compatible with the higher-density and more urban 20 
character of the area, as envisioned by the Big Beaver Corridor Study, are 
the primary buildings permitted under this building form. 

 
d. Building Form D: This category includes multi-story mixed-use 

developments with a residential component on upper floors and retail, office, 25 
service, or restaurant uses on the first and lower floors.  The category takes 
into consideration residential and commercial parking, access, and 
connectivity, and requires buildings that are between 3 and 6 stories, to 
complement the higher-intensity areas within the district. 

 30 
e. Building Form E: This category provides an opportunity for large-format 

retail or entertainment uses within the district under specific conditions.  
These buildings are over 50,000 square feet, but unlike classic large-format 
retail or entertainment uses, they directly abut the right-of-way, provide 
parking in the rear or side yards, and contribute to the street atmosphere by 35 
providing a consistent street front with other, more pedestrian-oriented 
projects.  They may be set back from the right-of-way, but only when they 
provide out-lots within the same project for category a, b, c, or d building 
forms on the same or on separate lots. 

 40 
f. Building Form F: This category is designed for large-scale buildings of 

unlimited height which serve as anchors within the district.  These buildings 
function much like category E building forms, but with a minimum 5 story 
height.  They may incorporate a series of mixed uses, typically are supported 
by lesser-classified building forms, and require complex solutions for 45 
parking and access. 



 

City of Troy 20 - 13 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE: August 19, 2010 

 
2. Table ______ assigns allowable Building Forms to locations based on the 

Regulating Plan.  Use Groups are classified in the following manner: 
 
a. Permitted Building Forms.  These Building Forms are permitted as of right 5 

in the locations specified, and are depicted in Table ____ with the symbol P. 
 
b. Special Building Forms.  These Building Forms are permitted after review 

and approval by the Planning Commission, in accordance with the 
procedures set forth in Article 7.0 and the standards in this Ordinance.  10 
Building Forms requiring special use approval are depicted in Table ______ 
with the symbol S. 

 
c. Prohibited Building Forms.  These Building Forms are prohibited in the 

locations specified, and are depicted in Table ______ with the symbol NP. 15 
 
d. Exceptions: For all building forms in all locations, awnings may project into 

the right-of-way beyond the required building line by up to 5 feet. 
 
3. Following the building form tables, Table ______ describes the permitted forms 20 

within the district.  The regulating plan dictates the site type and street type for each 
individual property in the district.  Once the site and street type are determined by 
the regulating plan, Table ______ described the permitted building forms with that 
property.  Building forms are permitted, permitted subject to special use approval, or 
not permitted in the site and street combination of each property. 25 

 
 



 

City of Troy 20 - 14 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

stories 1 story

feet 14 feet

stories 3 stories

feet 45 feet

ground floor minimum feet 12 feet

required building line1 0 feet. 75% of the building façade must meet the required building line, while up to 25% of the façade can be 
setback to allow for architectural consideration

minimum setback n/a

side minimum setback n/a (buildings may be placed up to the property line, but are not required to do so)

rear minimum setback 30 feet

30 percent

n/a

driveways may access the site from any side, pedestrian pathways must be provided from the right-of-way, and 
cross access must be provided in instances where a development is within an out lot of a high classified building 

form

parking shall be located in a side or rear yard; when located in a side yard and abutting the required building line 
adjacent the primary building, parking shall be screened with a minimum 30-inch masonry wall on the required 

building line, or within 5 feet of the required building line providied that a landscape treatment is added between 
the wall and the required building line.

1. Building Form A: Small, generally single purpose buildings for retail, office, restaurant, or service uses.  Typically situated in an out lot of a larger classification building form, or on a smaller, more remote site 
location within the district.

height

minimum

maximum

front

placement

required open space

lot coverage by all buildings

access and circulation

parking location

1: The Planning Commission may adjust the required building line to a maximum of 30 feet beyond the property line for projects incorporating a permanent space for an outdoor café, public space, or a cross 
access drive with an adjacent parcel.  Outdoor cafes or public spaces must be developed as part of the primary building and must incorporate a permanent wall or landscaping area along the required building line.

Lot

 
 

 [insert graphic] 



 

City of Troy 20 - 15 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

stories 2 story

feet 24 feet

stories 6 stories

feet 72 feet

ground floor minimum feet 12 feet

maximum setback 60 feet

minimum setback n/a

side minimum setback n/a (buildings may be placed up to the property line, but are not required to do so)

rear minimum setback 30 feet

15 percent

n/a

driveways may access the site from any side, pedestrian pathways must be provided from the right-of-way, and 
cross access must be provided 

parking shall be located in any yard; however, only one row of parking and a maneuvering lane shall be permitted 
in a front yard.  When parking is located in a side yard and abutting the required building line adjacent a primary 

building that abuts the right of way, parking shall be screened with a minimum 30-inch masonry wall on the 
required building line, or within 5 feet of the required building line providied that a landscape treatment is added 

between the wall and the required building line

Lot

required open space

lot coverage by all buildings

access and circulation

parking location

placement

front

2. Building Form B: Smaller, multiple-tenant buildings for retail, restaurant, office, service, or residential uses.  This category also includes multiple-tenant "strip mall" style development, although it requires a 
second story to encourage a mix of use

height

minimum

maximum

 

[insert graphic] 

 

 



 

City of Troy 20 - 16 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

stories 2 stories

feet n/a

stories 4 stories

feet 55 feet

ground floor minimum feet n/a

required building line1 0 feet. 75% of the building façade must meet the required building line, while up to 25% of the façade can be 
setback to allow for architectural consideration

minimum setback n/a

side minimum setback n/a (buildings may be placed up to the property line, but are not required to do so)

rear minimum setback 30 feet

15 percent

30 percent

driveways must access garages, if provided, integrated into buildings from the rear, in an alley configuration; 
detached garages or multi-garage structures are permitted only in a rear yard, or behind primary buildings in an 

alley; pedestrian pathways must be provided from the right-of-way

parking shall be located in a rear yard or in an alley between buildings; parking may also be provided in 
integrated garages or detached garages when accessed from an alley or rear yard; on-street parking within private 

roads in developments is highly encouarged

placement

front

3. Building Form C: This category is primarily designed for attached residential or live-work residential units.  Townhouses and urban-style residential developments that are compatible with the higher-density and 
more urban character of the area, as envisioned by the Big Beaver Corridor Study, are the primary buildings permitted under this building form.

height

minimum

maximum

1: The Planning Commission may adjust the required building line to a maximum of 30 feet beyond the property line for projects incorporating a permanent front yard, enclosed space that must incorporate a 
permanent wall or landscaping area along the required building line.

Lot

required open space

lot coverage by all buildings

access and circulation

parking location

  

[insert graphic] 

 



 

City of Troy 20 - 17 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

stories 3 stories

feet 35 feet

stories 6 stories

feet 66 feet

ground floor minimum feet 12 feet

required building line1 0 feet. 75% of the building façade must meet the required building line, while up to 25% of the façade can be 
setback to allow for architectural consideration

minimum setback n/a

side minimum setback n/a (buildings may be placed up to the property line, but are not required to do so)

rear minimum setback 40 feet

15 percent

30 percent

If a garage or below-grade parking are integrated into the building, they must be accessible from a side yard, rear 
yard, an alley, or from a side street in the case of a corner lot; access to surface parking for commercial traffic 

may be accessible from any direction; pedestrian pathways must be provided from the right-of-way

surface parking shall be located in a rear yard or side yard; parking for residnetial tenants may be provided in 
integrated garages or below-grade parking

placement

front

4. Building Form D: This category includes multi-story mixed-use developments with a residential component on upper floors and retail, office, service, or restaurant uses on the first and lower floors.  The 
category takes into consideration residential and commercial parking, access, and connectivity, and requires buildings that are between 3 and 6 stories, to complement the higher-intensity areas within the district.

height

minimum

maximum

1: The Planning Commission may adjust the required building line to a maximum of 30 feet beyond the property line for projects incorporating a permanent space for an outdoor café, public space, or a cross 
access drive with an adjacent parcel.  Outdoor cafes or public spaces must be developed as part of the primary building and must incorporate a permanent wall or landscaping area along the required building line.

Lot

required open space

lot coverage by all buildings

access and circulation

parking location

 

[insert graphic] 



 

City of Troy 20 - 18 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

stories 1 story

feet 14 feet

stories n/a

feet n/a

ground floor minimum feet 12 feet

required building line1 0 feet. 75% of the building façade must meet the required building line, while up to 25% of the façade can be 
setback to allow for architectural consideration

minimum setback n/a

side minimum setback n/a (buildings may be placed up to the property line, but are not required to do so)

rear minimum setback 40 feet

n/a

20,000 square feet

30 percent

driveways may access the site from any side, pedestrian pathways must be provided from the right-of-way, and 
cross access must be provided between category  building forms and all lesser or equally classified building 

forms

parking shall be located in a side or rear yard; when located in a side yard and abutting the required building line 
adjacent the primary building, parking shall be screened with a minimum 30-inch masonry wall on the required 
building line, or within 5 feet of the line with a landscape transition; in instances where outlots line the required 
building line and the required building line has been waived for the category 5 building, parking may be located 

between outlot buildings and the category 5 building or buildings

placement

front

Building Form E: This category provides an opportunity for large-format retail or entertainment uses within the district under very specific conditions.  These buildings are over 20,000 square feet, but unlike 
classic large-format retail or entertainment uses, they directly abut the right-of-way, provide parking in the rear or side yards, and contribute to the street atmosphere by providing a consistent street front with other, 
more pedestrian-oriented projects.  They may be set back from the right-of-way, but only when they provide out-lots within the same project for category a, b, c, or d building forms on the same or on separate lots.

height

minimum

maximum

1: The Planning Commission may eliminate the required building line for projects incorporating a permanent series of outlots or smaller buildings in the a, b, c, or d building form categories, provided that those 
outlots and/or buildings make up the entire frontage of the overall development along the required building line, with the exception of access drives.  The required building line frontage minimum for the outlots 
and/or other building forms along the required building line shall apply for each individual outlot and/or building.

Lot

required open space

lot coverage by all buildings

access and circulation

parking location

minimum ground floor area

 

 [insert graphic] 



 

City of Troy 20 - 19 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

stories 5 stories

feet 55 feet

stories n/a

feet n/a

ground floor minimum feet 12 feet

required building line1 0 feet. 75% of the building façade must meet the required building line, while up to 25% of the façade can be 
setback to allow for architectural consideration

minimum setback n/a

side minimum setback n/a (buildings may be placed up to the property line, but are not required to do so)

rear minimum setback 40 feet

n/a

30 percent

If a garage or below-grade parking are integrated into the building, they must be accessible from a side yard, rear 
yard, an alley, or from a side street in the case of a corner lot; access to surface parking for commercial traffic 

may be accessible from any direction; pedestrian pathways must be provided from the right-of-way

surface parking shall be located in a rear yard or side yard; parking for residnetial tenants may be provided in 
integrated garages or below-grade parking

placement

front

Building Form F: This category is designed for large-scale buildings of unlimited height which serve as anchors within the district.  These buildings function much like category E building forms, but with a 
minimum 5 story height.  They may incorporate a series of mixed uses, typically are supported by lesser-classified building forms, and require complex solutions for parking and access.

height

minimum

maximum

1: The Planning Commission may eliminate the required building line for projects incorporating a permanent series of outlots or smaller buildings in the a, b, c, or d building form categories, provided that those 
outlots and/or buildings make up the entire frontage of the overall development along the required building line, with the exception of access drives.  The required building line frontage minimum for the outlots 
and/or other building forms along the required building line shall apply for each individual outlot and/or building.

Lot

required open space

lot coverage by all buildings

access and circulation

parking location

 

[insert graphic] 



 

City of Troy 20 - 20 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

 

Table _______ 
Building Forms Permitted 

Street Type A: Big 
Beaver

Street Type B: 
Arterials

Street Type C: 
Collectors

Street Type A: Big 
Beaver

Street Type B: 
Arterials

Street Type C: 
Collectors

Street Type A: Big 
Beaver

Street Type B: 
Arterials

Street Type C: 
Collectors

1: small, single 
purpose, out 

buildings
P1 P P P1 P P P P P

2: small, multi-
tenant commercial 

with mixed use
P1 P P S P P P P P

3: attached 
residential or live-

work
S S S P P P P P P

4: multi-story mixed 
use, medium density P P P P P P P P P

5: large format 
commercial P P S P P S NP NP NP

6: large format 
mixed-use P P S P P S NP NP NP

1 Permitted only when located in an outlot of a Building Form 4, 5, or 6 project in a separate parcel, or within a designated outlot that remains part of the primary parcel

Building Forms

Site Type A: Major Sites Site Type B: Medium Sites Site Type C: Minor Sites

 

  5 



 

City of Troy 20 - 21 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

E. Design Standards.  In addition to standards set forth in this Ordinance, all proposed 
development shall comply with the Design Standards for the Big Beaver Corridor and the 
standards set forth herein. 

 
1. General Standards.  These requirements are designed to promote mixed-use 5 

development, infill development, and rehabilitation that shall: 
 

a. Establish a development pattern in which new buildings and building 
modifications enhance the character of the existing built environment; 

 10 
b. Increase transparency (windows) to add visual interest, increase pedestrian 

traffic, and to reduce crime through increased surveillance; 
 
c. Enhance a sense of place and contribute to the sustainability of the City; 
 15 
d. Orient building entrances and storefronts to the street; 
 
e. Articulate longer building façades into more human-scale increments; 
 
f. Distinguish commercial uses based on scale and auto-orientation; and 20 
 
g. Encourage transportation alternatives (walking, biking, and transit) to reduce 

automobile dependence and fuel consumption. 
 

2. Materials.   25 
 

a. Durable building materials, simple configurations, and solid craftsmanship 
are required.  Fifty percent (50%) of walls visible from public streets, 
exclusive of wall areas devoted to meeting transparency requirements, shall 
be constructed of brick, glass, fiber cement siding, metal (beams, lintels, trim 30 
elements, and ornamentation only), wood lap, stucco, split-faced block, or 
stone.  DriVit and vinyl or aluminum siding should only be used for accents. 

 
3. Façade Variation. 
 35 

a. Uninterrupted Façade.  The maximum linear length of an uninterrupted 
building façade facing public streets and/or parks shall be thirty (30) feet.  
Façade articulation or architectural design variations for building walls 
facing the street are required to ensure that the building is not monotonous in 
appearance.  Building wall offsets (projections and recesses); cornices, 40 
varying building materials or pilasters shall be used to break up the mass of a 
single building. 

 
4. Building Orientation / Entrance. 
 45 



 

City of Troy 20 - 22 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

a. Primary Entrance.  The primary building entrance shall be located in the 
front façade parallel to the street.   

 
b. Identifiable Entrance.  A clearly identifiable and useable building entrance is 

required for every sixty (60) feet of a building’s frontage on a primary street. 5 
 
c. Recessed Doorways.  Where the building entrance is located on or within 

five (5) feet of a lot line, doorways shall be recessed into the face of the 
building to provide a sense of entrance and to add variety to the streetscape. 
The entrance recess shall not be less than the width of the door(s) when 10 
opened outward. 
 

d. Residential Dwellings.  Entrances for all residential dwellings shall be 
clearly defined by at least one (1) of the following: 

 15 
i. Projecting or recessed entrance.  A recessed entrance is required if 

the building entrance is located on or within five (5) feet of the lot 
line. 

 
ii. Stoop or enclosed or covered porch. 20 

 
iii. Transom and/or side light window panels framing the door opening. 

 
iv. Architectural trim or unique color treatments framing the door 

opening. 25 
 

5. Expression Line (EL). 
 

a. A horizontal line on the façade known as the Expression Line (EL) shall 
distinguish the base of the building from the remainder to enhance the 30 
pedestrian environment.  The EL shall be created by a change in material, a 
change in design, or by a continuous setback, recess, or projection above or 
below the Expression Line.  Such elements as cornices, belt courses, 
corbelling, molding, stringcourses, ornamentation, and changes in material 
or color or other sculpturing of the base are appropriate design elements for 35 
ELs. 

 
b. If applicable, the height of the Expression Line shall be related to the 

prevailing scale of development in the area.  A change of scale may require a 
transitional design element between existing and proposed features. 40 

 
6. Transparency. 
 

a. The first floors of all buildings shall be designed to encourage and 
complement pedestrian-scale activity and crime prevention techniques.  It is 45 
intended that this be accomplished principally by the use of windows and 



 

City of Troy 20 - 23 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

doors arranged so that active uses within the building are visible from or 
accessible to the street, and parking areas are visible to occupants of the 
building. 

 
b. The minimum transparency requirement shall apply to all sides of a building 5 

that abut an urban open space or public right-of-way.  Transparency 
requirements shall not apply to sides which abut an alley. 

 
c. Windows for building sides (non-front) shall be concentrated toward the 

front edge of the building, in locations most visible from an urban open 10 
space or public right-of-way. 

 
7. Transitional Features. 
 

a. Transitional features are architectural elements, site features, or alterations to 15 
building massing that are used to provide a transition between higher 
intensity uses and low- or moderate-density residential areas.  These features 
assist in mitigating potential conflicts between those uses in lieu of 
conventional landscape buffers or large setbacks.  Given the complex 
relationships present between residential and non-residential land uses along 20 
the Big Beaver corridor, and the encouragement of mixed-use development, 
these features must be incorporated to ensure desirable conditions between 
uses and projects of varying intensity. It is the intent of these standards to: 

 
i. Reduce land consumption; 25 

 
ii. Create a compatible mixed-use environment; 

 
iii. Limit interruptions in vehicular and pedestrian connections created 

by efforts to segregate uses; and 30 
 

iv. Establish or maintain vibrant pedestrian- and transit-oriented areas 
where differing uses can operate in close proximity to one another. 

 
b. Landscape Buffer.  A landscape buffer may be provided in lieu of, or in 35 

addition to, a transitional feature where such landscape buffer would reduce 
potentially adverse impacts between incompatible uses or different building 
types. 

 
c. Intensity.  A continuum of use intensity, where moderate intensity uses are 40 

sited between high-intensity uses and low-intensity uses, shall be developed 
for multi-building developments on one (1) or more lots.  An example would 
be an office use between commercial and residential uses. 

 
d. Height and Mass.  Building height and mass in the form of building step-45 

backs, recess lines or other techniques shall be graduated so that structures 



 

City of Troy 20 - 24 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

with higher intensity uses are comparable in scale with adjacent structures of 
lower-intensity uses. 

 
e. Orientation.  Primary building facades shall be placed away from the 

residential use. 5 
 

f. Architectural Features.  Similarly sized and patterned architectural features 
such as windows, doors, arcades, pilasters, cornices, wall offsets, building 
materials, and other building articulations included on the lower-intensity 
use shall be incorporated in the transitional features.  10 

 
g. Parking and Loading.  Off-street parking, loading, service and utility areas 

shall be located away from the lower-intensity use and, where possible, 
adjacent to similar site features on surrounding sites. 

 15 
h. Lighting and Noise.  Incompatible outdoor lighting or sources of audible 

noise shall be prevented whenever practicable. 



 

City of Troy 20 - 25 Article 20 
DRAFT DATE:  August 19, 2010 

 
SECTION 20.04 MAPLE ROAD DISTRICT 
 
 
SECTION 20.05 NEIGHBORHOOD NODES DISTRICT 5 
 
 



DRAFT 8.13.2010

Downtown 
Development 
Authority
D esign
Guidelines



Downtown 
Development 
Authority
D esign
Guidelines



Mayor

Louise E. Schilling

City Council

Wade Fleming, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Robin E. Beltramini

Martin Howrylak
Mary Kerwin

Maureen McGinnis
Dane Slater

Planning Commission

Chair

Michael W. Hutson 

Members

Don Edmunds 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica
Robert Schultz

Thomas Strat, AIA
John Tagle, AIA
Lon M. Ullmann

Mark Vleck

Downtown Development Authority

Chair

Alan Kiriluk

Members

Stuart Frankel
David Hay

Michele Hodges
Larry Keisling 

William Kennis
P. Terry Knight 

Daniel MacLeish
 Ernest Reschke
Louise Schilling
Doug Schroeder

Harvey Weiss
G. Thomas York

City Manager

John Szerlag

Assistant City Manager/Economic 

Development Services

Mark Miller, AICP, PCP

Assistant City Manager/Financial 

Administration

John Lamerato

Information Technology Department

Gert Paraskevin, I.T. Director
Alex Bellak, GIS Administrator

Planning Department

Brent Savidant, AICP, PCP, Acting Planning 
Director

Kathy Czarnecki, Secretary

City Planning Consultant 

Carlisle/Wortman Associates
Ann Arbor and Clarkston, Michigan

Additional Assistance Provided By 

Grissim Metz Andriesse Associates
Northville, Michigan

Damian Farrell Design Group, Ann Arbor, 
Michigan



This Document was adopted 
by the City of Troy Downtown Development Authority on 

MONTH DATE, 2010

This Document was adopted 
by the City of Troy Planning Commission on 

MONTH DATE, 2010



Introduction 1

History of the Project 2

The Big Beaver Corridor Study 2

Downtown Devlopment Authority Map 4

Development Guidelines: Described 6

How will this document be used? 7

Existing Conditions 7

Roadway Width Analysis 8

Streets 11

Street Types Map  12

Street Types 

Primary Corridor A 15

Primary Corridor B 17

Design Standards for Primary Corridors A and B 22-31

Arterials 35

Collectors 39

Design Standards for Arterials and Collectors 51-54

Sites 55

Site Size Analysis 56

Site Type Map 58

Site Types 

Site Type A 61

Site Type B 63

Site Type C 65

Site Type D 67

SSite Type E 69

Site Design Standards 70-82

Structures 83

IStructure Types 

Structure Type A 85

Structure Type B 87

Structure Type C 89

Structure Type D 91

Structure Type E 93



DDA



1

Introduction
The Big Beaver Design Guidelines were developed 
to bridge the gap between the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study, the City of Troy Master Plan, Troy 
Vision 2020, and the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance.  
This document details more specifi cally what 
elements are critical to the implementation 
of the goals and objectives laid out in these 
documents.  The Guidelines fi rst describe large 
scale, “big picture” elements, such as general site 
layout, access, and building scale.  Second, the 
Guidelines provide more prescriptive standards 
for site planning details, street and streetscape 
elements, and architectural components.

There are two primary goals of the document.  The 
fi rst is the establishment of a consistent, adopted 
set of guidelines to provide direct, immediate 
guidance for developers and redevelopers in 
the City of Troy.  This will greatly benefi t all parties 
in that the development community will not be 
left to guess as to what elements are more or 
less favorable to the decision-making bodies of 
the City, and the staff and offi cials of the City will 
have a document which refl ects a consensus on 
these matters.  In short, the guidelines will make 
the entitlement process more effi cient, more 
predictable, and more successful on all fronts.

The second goal of the Guidelines document 
is to provide a basis for the development of a 
regulatory framework for a form-based code 
for the Big Beaver Corridor.  The comprehensive 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance rewrite project has 
been conducted concurrently with the creation 
of this document, and has informed the detailed 



DDA

2

requirements that have been drafted for the 
Ordinance.  The Ordinance will legislate many 
of the hard and fast rules for development and 
redevelopment in the area, while the Guidelines 
will help with the details.  The main, underlying 
recommendations of the Guidelines and the 
regulations of the Ordinance will be consistent with 
one another.

History of the Project
As noted above, this document was created 
to help implement the Big Beaver Corridor 
Study, which was adopted as part of the City 
of Troy Master Plan in 2008.  At that time, it was 
determined that the Study, while an excellent 
big-picture document that provided a visionary 
future for the Corridor, needed additional support 
to adequately serve its purpose.  These Guidelines 
represent that additional support.  Work began 
on the Design Guidelines in 2008, and has been 
ongoing in a series of efforts until its adoption in 
2010.  The Downtown Development Authority 
funded the project, while oversight and adoption 
authority of the fi nal product is shared between 
the DDA and the Planning Commission.  Both 
parties were involved regularly in the review of the 
Guidelines.

The Big Beaver Corridor Study
In the Troy Master Plan, it states that the Big Beaver 
Corridor “…is responsible for the fi rst impression 
many people have throughout Michigan when 
they think of the City of Troy.    The high-rise 



3

buildings, Somerset Collection, and its immediate 
proximity to I-75 are frequently the main elements 
visitors remember about the Corridor and the City.   
In order to remain competitive and continue to be 
a leader in economic development in Southeast 
Michigan, Troy must plan for this Corridor to evolve 
in light of a changing economy.” 

Therefore, the City developed the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study.  The key concept areas of the Big 
Beaver Corridor Study are:

Gateways, Districts and Transitions • 

Trees and Landscape as Ceilings and Walls • 

Walking Becomes Entertainment - Much to • 
Observe & Engage In 

Mixing the Uses Turns on the Lights - Energetic • 
Dynamic of Mixed Uses with a Focus on 
Residential 

The Automobile & Parking are No Longer #1. • 

Civic Art as the Wise Sage of the Boulevard• 

It goes on to state that the Study provided a 
comprehensive analysis of the existing and 
potential characteristics.  It supports the concept 
that the planned future land uses in the Big 
Beaver Corridor must be mixed-use, to allow for 
a wave of new residential development and the 
redevelopment of individual sites to make a more 
meaningful contribution to the quality of life of the 
City.  The main difference between the various 
mixed-use districts planned in the Study is building 
height, but also other characteristics, which this 
document will clarify.  



DDA

4



5



DDA

6

Development Guidelines: 
Described
The fi rst components of the Design Guidelines are 
primarily concerned with the “big picture” urban 
form elements on which little negotiation should 
be considered.  These factors include building size, 
relationships with other buildings and the street, 
and a building’s location on the site.  

Regardless of the architectural style of a proposed 
project, these topics are a starting point for site 
designers.  They are critical to establish the building 
relationships and outdoor spaces envisioned within 
the Big Beaver Corridor Study.  Building consensus 
on these main factors will allow the DDA, Planning 
Commission, and City Council to uniformly apply 
similar principles across the board within the DDA.

The more specifi c design elements for streets 
and sites represent a “focusing” of the DDA’s 
lens on more physically prescriptive elements 
of development and more specifi c site design 
factors.  These standards set the bar for site and 
architectural design elements and are meant to 
provide designers with a menu of options.  These 
options communicate to the designer what level 
of material quality is appropriate in a given area, 
for instance, but may not necessarily prescribe any 
one particular material, color, or architectural style.  

The Design Guidelines address site amenities and 
elements like waste receptacles, fences, planters, 
banners, fl agpoles, water fountains, street cafes, 
retaining and screen walls, and street furniture.  



7

While not intended to prescribe any one make or 
model of any site amenity, the Design Guidelines 
provide the rules under which a designer should 
select their proposed elements.

How will this document be used?
This document contains many design guidelines 
and standards.  It covers the entire Downtown 
Development Authority, although there are 
many different types of development in the 
area.  The Corridor itself is varied with high-ride 
offi ce, shopping centers, stand alone retail and 
restaurants, and even converted single-family 
homes.  This complex environment led the 
development of the unique approach of this 
document.

The Guidelines provide specifi c information for 
each site in the DDA, depending on what type of 
site the project is on, and what type of roadway it 
is adjacent to.  In order to fi nd what sections apply 
to a particular property, one must fi rst select their 
site on the Site Types Map and determine their 
site type.  Then looking at the Street Types Map, 
the owner can identify if they are on a Primary 
Corridor, Arterial, etc.  Once a user has the site 
and street type, they can simply look up those 
pages in the table of contents that describe the 
site and street design guidelines for that site and 
street type and essentially ignore the rest.

After each site and street types section, there 
are a series of pages detailing more prescriptive 
elements that effect a site’s development. These 
apply to all properties that are on the site types or 
street types covered by these detailed elements.

Finally, this document provides guidelines on 
structure types.  Depending on the desired 
building type, one of fi ve structure type guideline 
sets can be applied to a project.

Existing Conditions
One the following page is a graphic which 
shows how varied the development pattern is 
along the Big Beaver Corridor.  The scope and 
scale of project go from very small, to regionally 
prominent.  The building front to building front 
span can be as wide as 700 feet, or as narrow 
as 300 feet, with buildings of differing heights 
on either side.  This is but one example of the 
challenges of the existing Big Beaver Corridor, 
and why this document comprehensively 
addresses what goes on within the right-of-way 
(streets), what goes on in the private realm (sites), 
and what goes vertical (structures).



DDA

8

IIII--
7777 5555

BBIIGG BBEEAAVVAAA EERR RRRDD

KKIIRRTTSS BBLLVVLLLL D

C
R

O
O

K
S

RR
DD

GOLFVIEW DRIVIEW DR

LLII
VV

EE
RR

NN
OO

IISSS
AAAA

VV
AAA

EE

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E
 H

W
Y

C
O

C
O

O
LI

D
G

RR
O

CC
H

E
S

T
EE

R
R

DD

HARTLAND STTLA

II7575 CCOONNNN

A
LP

IN
E

A
S

T

I7
5

O
FR

PP

STATT RR DR

TROMBLEY ST

KRISTIN DRRS COLEBROOK ST

MUER RD

LM
E

R
 S

T
K

IL

TT A
LB

O
T

LB
TT

 S
T

T

LA
K

V
IE

W
E

V
E

BOULAN ST

C
U

N
N

IN
G

H
A

M

CHERRY STE

HICKORYY ST

LEXINGTONLEXINGTONL

CCEENNTTUURRYY DDRR

CCOOAACCHHMMAANN DDRR

WILSHIRRE

HARRIS

SOMERSET BLVLL D

U
R

E
M

C
C

LU
S

T

III -- 777555

CCC
OOOO

LLLLOO
NN

Y

BUTTERFFIELD RDD

T
R

O
Y

SS
T

LOWRY RRDD

LO
U

ISS
S

T

OLIVER

TT
OO

D
D

C
IIVVV

ICC
C

E
N

T
E

R

E
LL

E
N

B
O

R
OO

S
TT

HH
EE

LLE
N

A
S

T

TOWN CENTER DRT VANDERPOOL ST

ESSEX AVAA E

BANMOOR ST

PICADILLYLL

JAA
C

K
D

R

BABBCCCOO
CK

DR

T
R

O
Y

CC
EE

NNN
TT

EE
RR

DD
R

OOLLYYLLL MMPPIIAA SST

OWENDALE STT

ROXXBURYYY DDDRRR

BOYD ST

WITHERBEE STT

A
C

AA
CC

IA

D
O

R
C

H
E

SS
T

E
R

R
D

H
A

M
LEE

T

LI
B

E
RR

T
Y

LN

TTIMBERVIEW

ROBINWOOD ST

WHEATON STWHEATON ST

MILLSTONE

S
P

E
N

C
E

R
S

T

NAUGHTON ST

TORPEY DR

N
E

W
P

O
R

T
CC

T

P
AA

PP
RRR

K
T

O
N

PORTSMOOUTH RRD

EEMERSON STT

BB
EE

A
C

OOO
NN

H
IL

LL
DD

R

MMEDFORD RDD

HHH
EE

ID
E

S
T

MAPLELAWN DR

WW
E

XX
F

O
R

D
SS

TT

W
AA

WW
T

AA
EE

R
LO

O
D

R HENRIETTAHE TA

ALISOPPLACE

G
RRR

E
S

H
A

M

CC
H

A
R

T
EE

RRR

LINDA SST

M
UU

EE
RR

K
N

OO
LLLL

SS
TT

RROOCCHHEESSTTEERR CCCCCOONNNNNN

LA
MM

PP
LI

GG
HH

T
E

R

MUER RD

HARTLAND STH

BBANMOOR ST

OOWWWWENDALE ST
II775 CCOONNN

Basemap Source: Oakland County Planning

DDA Distances Between Buildings

A B C D E F G H



9

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H



10



DDA Sittes SStructurress

11

This document identifi es fi ve street types, 
four of which are the subject of design 
guidelines.  Only local, residential streets 
are not provided with a set of guidelines, 
due to the small and unique character of 
these streets.  The main thoroughfare Big 
Beaver Road, is split into two categories, 
Primary Corridor A and Primary Corridor B.  
The main difference between the two is 
the presence of an access drive in Primary 
Corridor A; an extended pedestrian 
pathway characterizes Primary Corridor B.  

The other remaining streets are labeled 
Arterial or Collector, based on their widths, 
function, and long-term potential.  These 
two street types have their own sets of 
guidelines as well.

The map on the following pages is to be 
sued as a key when identifying which set of 
guidelines is applicable to a specifi c site.

The map is followed by the guidelines 
themselves each set of which have 
a section and overhead drawing, 
accompanied by a text description, on the 
fi rst two pages.  The following two pages 
contain a rendering and a more detailed 
section and plan-view illustration.

The fi rst two street types are Primary 
Corridor A and Primary Corridor B.  Their 
guidelines are followed by a series of ages 
describing the specifi c design elements of 
various, more prescriptive components of 
streetscape design.



DDA

12



13





DDA Sittes SStructurress

15

The Primary Corridor A category refers to 
portions of Big Beaver Road with the widest 
spacing between building fronts and in which 
service drives may potentially be implemented.  
The category is meant to refl ect the “world class 
boulevard” characteristics established in the 
Big Beaver Corridor Study, and is used in the 
highest profi le areas of the Big Beaver Corridor.  

The portions of Big Beaver classifi ed as Primary 
Corridor A will integrate features designed to 
accommodate through traffi  c and local traffi  c, 
will focus on gateways, and will enhance the 
Big Beaver Corridor experience.  Together with 
Primary Corridor B, this category will refl ect 
all the strongest and most prominent features 
proposed in the Big Beaver Corridor Study.  

Strong landscaping regimens, pedestrian 
and traffi  c-scale lighting, eff ective signage, 
wide non-motorized pathways, and a 
complementary relationship with transit 
opportunities will make Primary Corridor A a 
distinguished area within the region.

The design standards for the public realm 
would primarily address the streetscape and 
median zones within the rights of way for each 
street type as described in the Development 
Guidelines and could be applied to all 
public properties developed within the DDA 
boundary.



16



DDA Sittes SStructurress

17





DDA Sittes SStructurress

19

The Primary Corridor B category refers to 
portions of Big Beaver Road with narrower 
spacing between building fronts and in 
which service drives will likely not be used.  
Like Primary Corridor A, the category is 
meant to refl ect the “world class boulevard” 
characteristics established in the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study, but is used in lower profi le areas 
of the Corridor than Primary Corridor A.  

The portions of Big Beaver classifi ed as Primary 
Corridor B will integrate features designed to 
accommodate through traffi  c and local traffi  c, 
will focus on gateways, and which will enhance 
the Big Beaver Corridor experience.  Together 
with Primary Corridor A, this category will 
refl ect all the strongest and most prominent 
features proposed in the Corridor Study. 

Strong landscaping regimens, pedestrian 
and traffi  c-scale lighting, eff ective signage, 
wide non-motorized pathways, and a 
complementary relationship with transit 
opportunities will make Primary Corridor B a 
distinguished area within the region.

The design standards for the public realm 
would primarily address the streetscape and 
median zones within the rights of way for each 
street type as described in the Development 
Guidelines and could be applied to all 
public properties developed within the DDA 
boundary.



20



DDA Sittes SStructurress

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



DDA Sittes SStructurress

33

The following guidelines and associated 
standards for streetscape design 
elements are for the Arterial and Collector 
categories.  Like the Primary Corridor A and 
B categories, they provide a section and 
overhead drawing, accompanied by a 
text description, on the fi rst two pages.  The 
following two pages contain a rendering 
and a more detailed section and plan-
view illustration.  These are followed by 
a series of pages with more prescriptive 
design standards for the Arterial and 
Collector types.





DDA Sittes SStructurress

35

The Arterial Road category is meant for the 
main north-south roads that cross the Big 
Beaver Corridor.  These roads connect the main 
corridor with the rest of the City and the region.  
They are characterized by a narrower building-
to-building distance, safe and eff ective non-
motorized pathways designed to encourage 
users to reach the Primary Corridor areas by 
bike or on foot, eff ective signage and lighting, 
and few individual residential curb cuts.  

The crosswalks spanning Arterial Roads will 
make use of a series of features intended to 
protect pedestrians by establishing equity 
between pedestrians and motorists through 
eff ective design.  Raised walks of high-quality 
materials, signage, landscaping, and pedestrian 
respite islands are several options that may be 
found at crosswalk areas along an Arterial Road.  

Arterial Roads will also be characterized by 
strong landscaping designed to mitigate the 
negative impacts of high traffi  c volumes from 
adjacent residential areas which provide a 
unique and memorable visual character for the 
roadway. 

The intersections between the Arterial Roads 
and Big Beaver Road will be marquis places 
with enhanced community and corridor 
landmarks.  The spaces will be defi ned by a 
stable and consistent building-to-building 

ratio complemented by landmark structures, 
superior landscaping and community signage 
with medians, and memorable architecture.

The design standards for the public realm 
would primarily address the streetscape 
and median zones within the rights of way 
for each street type as described in the 
Development Guidelines and could be 
applied to all public properties developed 
within the DDA boundary.



36



DDA Sittes SStructurress

37





DDA Sittes SStructurress

39

TThe Collector Road category defi nes those 
roads tying together smaller areas within the 
District.  Collectors have a more varied and 
localized character than Primary or Arterial 
Roads depending on their context within 
predominantly offi  ce, retail, or residential 
areas.  Collectors act as the backbone of smaller 
neighborhoods within the District and tie those 
areas to Arterials.

Collectors will be very welcoming of non-
motorized users and will have defi ned 
pedestrian rest areas and other amenities 
whenever possible.  Their scale will be similar 
to that of a main road within a conventional 
subdivision or industrial park, and their width 
will be determined primarily on their purpose.  
A Collector within an industrial area may be 
required to be wider than one in a residential 
area, although their purpose is similar.

Collectors will have a much higher frequency 
of curb cuts than Arterial or Primary Roads, and 
will often provide direct access to retail centers 
or offi  ce complexes.  Suffi  cient width should 
be retained on either side of the roadway 
whenever possible to allow for a rigorous 
landscaping plan to ensure that the immediate 
uses served are adequately protected from 
the moderate traffi  c volumes anticipated on a 
Collector Road.

The Collector category is also meant to 
include any new roads constructed within the 
Downtown Development Authority designed 
as part of the Ring Road proposed by the Big 
Beaver Corridor Study.

The design standards for the public realm 
would primarily address the streetscape 
and median zones within the rights of way 
for each street type as described in the 
Development Guidelines and could be 
applied to all public properties developed 
within the DDA boundary.



40



DDA Sittes SStructurress

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49





DDA Sittes SStructurress

51

The following guidelines and associated 
images are for monuments and signage 
throughout the DDA that are designed to 
help transition the driver into the corridor 
and establish a feeling of arrival in the 
community.



52



53





DDASStreeets  SStructurress

55

Site types are largely, though not 
exclusively established by lot size.  Some 
sites were shifted to groups primarily made 
up of smaller or larger lots based on their 
other characteristics, such as location, 
adjacency to other lot types, proximity to 
certain street types, or the established use.

The following pages have two maps, the 
fi rst of which is an analysis of lot size.  The 
second map is the key for the Guidelines, it 
describes which site types were ultimately 
classifi ed in certain areas throughout the 
DDA.

The maps are followed by fi ve spreads 
describing the fi ve site types identifi ed by 
these Guidelines.  They are designed to 
help the reader understand, in a simple, 
graphic way, the difference between 
existing conditions and desired conditions 
for the various sites throughout the DDA.

The primary guidelines are then followed 
by a series of pages describing the more 
prescriptive design elements for private 
property in the DDA.  They include 
standards similar to those for the street 
types, but are supported by additional 
guidance for parking lot and deck design, 
screening for service areas, and wall 
design.



DDA

56



57



DDA

58



59





DDASStreeets  SStructurress

61

Made up mostly of lots in the 2.5 acre and 
smaller range, the Site Type A category is 
reserved for the smallest, single-use sites 
developed for individually standing businesses.  
Small coff ee shops or fast food restaurants 
would often be found in this category, as well 
as small multi-tenant offi  ce buildings or single-
tenant offi  ce buildings. 

Site Type A is primarily found along Big 
Beaver Road in areas between the “pulses” 
of major intersections, where lot depths are 
constrained and where older, smaller buildings 
predominate.  These sites must be designed 
to better integrate with their surroundings 
to contribute to a more cohesive District, 
a more consistent building line, and more 
effi  cient access between sites.  Good access for 
pedestrians and cross access for vehicles will 
help sites in this Category reduce trips entering 
and existing from Big Beaver Road.  

Groups of Site Type A properties may 
make excellent candidates for coordinated 
combination of properties to create more 
cohesive mini-destinations.





DDASStreeets  SStructurress

63

The sites in Site Type B are mostly between 
2.51 and 5 acres in area, and are located in and 
around areas mostly fi lled with smaller, Type A 
sites.  Similar to Type A sites in character, they 
are located on sites large enough to warrant 
additional consideration to landscaping 
and surface parking in that they can often 
accommodate large surface lots, which can 
compromise the cohesiveness of the area if not 
designed with connectivity in mind.





DDASStreeets  SStructurress

65

Between 5.01 and 10 acres are most of the 
Site Type C sites.  Groupings of Type C sites are 
found off  Big Beaver within industrial areas of 
the DDA, and in locations where several larger, 
single-use developments are situated nearby 
one another.  Hotels, single offi  ce buildings, and 
other large single building developments often 
fall into this category.  They often house large 
employment centers.

The Site Type C category should be designed 
with integration in mind.  Integration with one 
another and with much larger destination retail 
and offi  ce complex sites will allow for better 
interaction between users, which could lead 
to a more readily shared customer and tenant 
base and could help reduce Big Beaver traffi  c.

Site Type C sites are mostly transitional in that 
they serve as a buff er between small site uses 
and very large uses in Type D and E, such as 
the Somerset Collection.  They are of suffi  cient 
area to allow for signifi cant pedestrian and 
landscaping amenities, quality signage and 
buff ered surface parking.





DDASStreeets  SStructurress

67

Site Type D properties are predominantly 
between 10.01 and 20 acres in area, but they 
are more strongly related to one another 
through their nature and large, campus-style 
properties with multiple large buildings 
designed to function as one unit.  

Walkability between sites and provision of 
on-site open space are key to the success of 
these type s of sites from an urban design 
perspective.  They should be designed with 
a mix of uses in mind to allow for users to 
obtain basic services on or immediately near 
the site.  Especially within large offi  ce centers 
in the Type D category, where hundreds of 
workers may populate the site during the day, 
restaurants, postal facilities and other daily 
needs should be integrated within existing 
buildings or permitted to exist in smaller out-lot 
developments.  

Parking for Type D sites should be 
accommodated in structured parking whenever 
possible to maximize the use of the site for 
the primary use and to allow the site to be 
developed more densely than it could with 
surface parking.  

The site design should strongly focus on 
putting the densest components of the project 
within close range of the primary right-of-way 
to combat the vast open areas that frequently 

make such sites diffi  cult or undesirable to 
cross on foot.  A busy arrangement of campus 
uses along the right of way will help keep 
pedestrians engaged and will make these 
larger sites fi t better with surrounding smaller 
sites in the Type A and B categories. 





DDASStreeets  SStructurress

69

Like Type D, Type E sites are predominantly 
campus-style projects; however they are 
limited to sites over 20 acres.  These large 
sites have existing mixed-use or multi-
tenant developments or would be ideal to 
accommodate such developments.  They share 
make of the characteristics of Type D sites, and 
should strive to achieve the walkability and 
connectivity guidelines of a Type D property at 
a more regional scale. 

The Type E category is meant to serve the 
destination properties of the Corridor.  
Somerset Collection, the Municipal Campus 
and Top of Troy are found in this category.  
These are the largest, most prominent marquis 
properties along the Corridor and should refl ect 
the highest standard of design encouraged 
by the Big Beaver Corridor Study with regard 
to pedestrian amenities, high quality signage 
and landscaping, and ideal site lighting.  They 
should be sited to reinforce the existing or 
desired building line along the Corridor and 
provide a wide range of mixed uses.



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81





DDASStrreeets SSitess 

83

This fi nal section describes the fi ve structure 
types detailed in this document.  There are 
no mandatory structure types, rather, the 
developer would follow the guidelines for 
the structure type that most closely refl ects 
the structure they intend to build.  The 
form-based codes in the Zoning Ordinance 
will also have a signifi cant bearing on 
structure type.





DDASStrreeets SSitess 

85

The smallest structure style category is Type A.  
Type A structures are those that are 1-2 stories 
in height and which usually house a single use.  
Stand-alone coff ee shops, small professional 
offi  ces, and retail could all fall into this category.  

Square footage of a Type A Structure falls under 
about 15,000 square feet.   This threshold allows 
it to include corner drug stores and other small 
retail buildings, but excludes larger scale “big 
box” structures.  

Type A structures should be usually associated 
with other similar structures or located at 
the edges of larger structures or groups of 
structures and should serve as a buff er between 
residential and non-residential areas.  

Type A structures should be unique and 
attractive structures built of high-quality 
materials and should avoid being “branded” 
so as to allow for their adaptation to future 
tenants.





DDASStrreeets SSitess 

87

Type B structures are those designed for a 
single use, but with a large square footage, 
usually greater than 15,000 square feet in 
mind.  Unlike a conventional “big box” however, 
Type B single-tenant structures of this size in 
the DDA will be at least 2 stories.  New retail 
formats allow for multi-story large format retail 
locations which require a smaller footprint and 
which better complement the surrounding 
multi-story uses.

Like small single-tenant structures, these 
buildings should be unique and attractive 
structures built of high-quality materials and 
should avoid being “branded” so as to allow for 
their adaptation to future tenants.





DDASStrreeets SSitess 

89

Small mixed-use multi-tenant buildings fall 
into the Type C category.  These structures 
may contain any combination of residential 
and non-residential uses, and will usually 
be less than 20,000 square feet in total area.  
Designed to be anchors in small pockets of 
walkable development, these projects allow 
for commercial uses to be located in close 
proximity to new alternative residential 
development.  Useful in neighborhood nodes 
and in infi ll areas, Type C structures must take 
the safety and comfort of residential tenants 
into consideration as well as the quality of the 
commercial space for rent.  

Residential areas in Type C structures should 
have private entrance areas separated from 
public, non-residential areas and should 
typically be located on the 2nd through 4th 
fl oors.

Type C structures can also house a combination 
of retail and offi  ce uses, but must always 
contain units which would accommodate some 
form of mixed-use, whether or not it includes a 
residential component.

Extensive use of windows and high-quality 
building materials will characterize these 
structures, which should form a large portion of 
new construction in the DDA.





DDASStrreeets SSitess 

91

Very large, mixed-use developments fall into 
the Type D category.  Designed to be 5 or more 
stories, these large buildings contain many 
residential units or a hotel component as well 
as units designed for offi  ce and retail.  The fi rst 
fl oor of a Type D structures should contain uses 
designed to interact directly with the public, 
like retail, restaurants, and even some forms of 
offi  ce.

These buildings should be allowed to make an 
architectural statement and serve as substantial 
anchors on larger lots throughout the DDA.





DDASStrreeets SSitess 

93

The largest structure category is reserved 
for “campus” style developments, meaning a 
collection of larger buildings designed for any 
number of mixed uses. 

Type E structures could house a collection of 
buildings that may be considered Type D if they 
were on their own, but when grouped they 
become Type E structures.  Type E structures 
should be designed with the overall function 
and form of the entire project in mind and 
should be designed to complement one 
another and function as a unit.

Type E structures should include a mix of uses, 
but could include one or more large structures 
within a campus designed for a single large 
use, such as offi  ce or a hotel, provided that the 
project is designed as a single cohesive unit.  

Type E structures will serve as memorable 
destinations for the entire region and should 
be designed and constructed with future 
generations in mind.  Quality materials, 
adaptable tenant spaces, safe and secure 
residential components, and integrated 
walkable features throughout the project will 
characterize the structures in this category.



Downtown 
Development 
Authority
D esign
Guidelines


	/ PLANNING COMMISSION
	MEETING AGENDA
	SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING
	August 24, 2010 7:30 P.M. Council Board Room

	08-10-10 Regular Meeting_Draft.pdf
	PUBLIC HEARING OPENED




